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	Good morning and welcome to the IACP Module 5 – Selection and Award. Everyone here should have already attended the first four modules of this series -- Acquisition Planning; RFP Solicitation Development; RFP Process Administration; and RFP Evaluation.

QUESTION: Anyone here who hasn’t taken those classes?

If any student raises their hand, you will need to check how they got enrolled in this class.

Introduce yourself – name and background. Now let’s go through a few administrative items:
· Emergency phone numbers (check whiteboard for #)
· Exits and evacuation procedures (go left, left again at green exit sign, and walk to the rear of the zig) 

· Restrooms

· Breaks, lunch. Cafe – covered drinks OK, but try to minimize food in classroom 
· Parking garage (no In/Out privileges)

· Make sure you sign in each day, both morning and afternoon

· Fill out a “Make-Up Registration Form” if you are making up this class. Respect others and be on time.
QUESTION: By a show of phones, who has a cell phone? OK, now please turn them OFF for the duration of the class. Can we all agree on no texting and no calls during class time? Good!

Since you don’t know the students, you could choose a person to begin with and ask them to give their name, department, and their opinion on spreadsheets (or a topic you prefer).
NEXT SLIDE
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	· Class website address: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/pd/Programs/CalPCA/Info/IACP5.aspx 

You should all have a workbook binder.  It includes slide notes pages, handouts, and numbered exercises.  Feel free to use the slide notes pages for your own notes. They are yours to keep.

As questions arise, if we can’t answer them during the class, we’ll “park” them on to the board right over here, where they’ll stay until we check them off one-by-one as we answer them. Work for you?
We have standard calculators in the classroom, but feel free to bring your own to class.

QUESTION: Any questions before we begin?

OK then, let’s get started! (
NEXT SLIDE
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	In this Module, we hope to provide students with the right “tools” to take you from the completion of an evaluation through the steps necessary to successfully award a contract from an IT competitive RFP.

NEXT SLIDE   
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	Up until this point in the evaluation process, you have been evaluating individual proposals against the requirements of the RFP. Having completed that evaluation, we’re now going to go through how to perform a comparative analysis of the proposals and select the apparent winning bidder.

You’ll learn how to document in detail the evaluation and selection process, using some new templates and tools created especially for this purpose.

Although undoubtedly many of you know this process pretty well, we’re going to quickly address the Notice of Intent to Award process.

We’ll help you understand the various protest processes, and specifically, how to process any Protest received either during your solicitation process, or once you’ve announced your Intent to Award.

Finally, we’ll go through the steps necessary to actually award your contract, and prepare for contract administration and management activities.

NEXT SLIDE
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	We’re going to use this graphic throughout the day, as a segue between each topic. Besides it gives the class developers a chance to work on their slide transition skills....ha-ha

NEXT SLIDE 
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	Before we get started on building your Selection and Award toolbox, let’s quickly review previous modules. 

In the Basic Acquisition Certificate Program, we learned about the:

· Acquisition process

· Overview of acquisition rules

· Solicitation process activities

· How to develop and use a Statement of Work

· Ethics

· Documentation

Anybody ready for the test on this topic? Ha-ha, just kidding!

NEXT SLIDE
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	Beginning in the Intermediate Program, IACP 1 (Acquisition Planning) taught us many useful things about the beginnings of a competitive solicitation process for IT acquisitions. One of the most important things we learned is that all-important definition of Information Technology (IT)… so we don’t go to a lot of hard work that pertains to IT only to find out (after the work is done) that the procurement is really for services…

NEXT SLIDE
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	In the 2-day IACP 2 (RFP Development), we learned about: 

· The difference between IFBs and RFPs

· The different phases of an RFP

· The different Key Action Dates, and how much time to provide for each major step of the RFP

· How to develop good, effective requirements

· Evaluation components and Scoring models

· How to evaluate costs

· Key contract provisions

QUESTION – Who would like to share with the class the primary differences between an IFB and an RFP, notwithstanding price?

Answer (in concept): 

· An IFB says “here’s what I want, what’s your best price?” 

· The focus is on technical specification
· An RFP says “here is my problem; how would you solve it (and for what price, of course!)?”

· The focus is on functional or performance-related characteristics

NEXT SLIDE
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	Having said that, 

“Be careful what you ask for” because you definitely will get it! That’s OK if you know it will do the job, but if you don’t know………its awfully difficult to blame a contractor for something not working properly or adequately when that contractor delivered exactly what we asked for…

QUESTION: Who wants to read the comic out loud to the class?

(Click for the next slide which is the actual comic. After that, then click again and Slide 10 will be the next slide.)

NEXT SLIDE
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	In the 2-day IACP 3 (RFP Process Administration) we learned about …

· The rules that govern the RFP process

· How to organize an RFP effort

· How to create an Evaluation and Selection Team Procedures Manual

· How to facilitate confidential discussions with bidders

· How to maintain the very foundation of public procurement – integrity in the process 

QUESTION – what is the most important document that must be signed by a bidder and State RFP team members long before confidential discussions regarding any preliminary (Conceptual, Detailed Technical or Draft) Proposal may begin?

Answer: Confidentiality statement

QUESTION: During the procurement will you be briefing your Procurement and Contracting Officer (PCO), or your supervisor, or even your department director? Do you need a signed Confidentiality Statement from them before you do that?

Answer: Yes, absolutely!

Finally, you should have just finished IACP 4 on RFP Evaluation. Whew! I’ll bet that was fun, right?

QUESTION -- Who would like to volunteer what you think were the most valuable lessons learned from that Module?

NEXT SLIDE




	Module 5 – Selection and Award

Moving Along…



	Slide 11

	
	Moving right along...

Having quickly reviewed the classes you’ve already completed, we’re ready to begin this segment – Compare.

NEXT SLIDE
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	In this first segment, we’re going to pick up where we left off in IACP 4 (Evaluation) – after the evaluation of proposals has been completed. 

There are many, many evaluation methods that can be used – surely enough to fill a full 2-day workshop on the topic. Whatever method is used, it should be clearly stated in the Evaluation and Selection Team Procedures Manual, and then actually followed during the evaluation. Because this is the method that DGS/PD uses and recommends, we’re going to follow their lead and recommend that you use a consensus scoring model to evaluate your bids. To do that, the entire RFP Evaluation Team should meet to discuss individual notes, and come to a consensus on the points to be awarded each individual proposal. 

Up until now, attention has been focused on individual proposals, and – using the value scoring techniques learned in Module 4, measuring to what extent they are responsive to the requirements of the RFP. 

Now, we’re going to do what once was thought to be forbidden – COMPARE proposals! Up until now in the evaluation process, you have been especially careful NOT to compare one proposal against another, but rather, you’ve been focusing on determining to what degree each proposal meets or exceeds the RFP requirements. Well, now we’re going to purposely switch, and compare each proposal against all of the others. Because that’s the only way we can determine who the apparent winning bidder is.

NEXT SLIDE
[INSTRUCTOR NOTE: You may want to mention you are walking them through the next calculation so they will understand how the evaluation tables work, in case they need to explain it to a supplier. You would be able to expedite the calculation if you were not walking them through it step by step.]


	Module 5 – Selection and Award

1. Compare
Comparative Analysis 



	Slide 13
Exercise 1 Pages 

Ex1-1 -- Ex 1-5 will help the students to view the formulas in a different way from what is shown on the slides.
Why are we comparing to the Highest Non-Cost Score?

The basis of the non-cost points part of an evaluation where award is made to the highest score, is always highest score.


	
	Let’s begin by determining each bidder’s Total Weighted Non-Cost (Admin + Technical) Score. We’ll need to do 3 calculations to accomplish this. Pull out Exercise 1, pages Ex 1-1 through Ex 1-5 if you want to follow along in hard copy.
In Calculation 1, we’ll compare the points scored by each bidder to the bidder with highest points. So we’re going to divide each bidder’s non-cost points by the highest points scored to arrive at what we call the Ratio. The bidder with the highest non-cost points will always have a Ratio of 1.0000. Make sense?

On the slide, you’ll see a table that illustrates this calculation. On the table, there are 5 bidders with their non-cost points listed. We’ve actually included one that was rejected just to show what a real table in a real procurement might look like. Just a note here – these points include any applicable DVBE Incentive points.
The numbers we’re using were taken from one of the Scenarios that we’ll be using in Exercise 1. So I entered the numbers from Scenario 5 into the table. As each bidder’s non-cost points are divided by the highest non-cost points, you see the result which is the Ratio. Notice the bidder with the highest non-cost points – Bidder E -- has a Ratio of 1.0000. 

(click)

Now we’re going to take this Ratio and use it in Calculation 2. Before we move on though, does this calculation make sense, or are there any questions?

Field all questions and then…

NEXT SLIDE 
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For those of you following along with Exercise 1

Page

Ex1-1, Calc 2 is in the middle of the page.
	
	In Calculation 2, we’ll determine each bidder’s unweighted non-cost points by multiplying the Ratio (the result of Calculation 1) by the Maximum Available Points. 

(click)

So, again, we’ve got our 5 bidders listed (still showing the one that was rejected), and their corresponding Ratios that we determined in Calculation 1. Now we’re going to multiply each bidder’s Ratio by the maximum points available in our procurement to arrive at the unweighted non-cost points. 

So, if your procurement has 5000 or 250 or 2600 maximum points available, then that’s the number we would be multiplying against. Again, since I am using the numbers from Scenario 5 in this example, I’ll use the maximum points available in that Scenario, which is 3000. So in the example, we’re going to multiply each bidder’s Ratio by the Maximum Available Points of 3000 to arrive at each bidder’s unweighted non-cost points.

(click)

Next we’re going to take these unweighted non-cost points and “weight” them in order to determine each bidder’s Total Weighted Non-Cost Score. That will be done in Calculation 3. Some of you probably have questions about this “weighting”, but don’t worry I’ll answer them on the next slide.
Again, before we move on, does this calculation make sense to everyone, or are there any questions?

Field all questions and then…

NEXT SLIDE 
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For those of you following along with Exercise 1 Page

Ex1-1, Calc 3 is at the bottom of the page.
	
	In Calculation 3, we’ll multiple each bidder’s unweighted non-cost points (the result of Calculation 2)      (click)

by the Non-Cost Weight to determine each bidder’s Total Weighted Non-Cost Score.

So, again, we’ve got our 5 bidders and their corresponding unweighted non-cost points that we determined by multiplying each bidder’s Ratio by the maximum available points in our procurement – in this case, 3000, from Scenario 5. 

Next, we’re going to “weight” these points. We’ll do that by multiplying them by the weighted value of the non-cost points in our procurement. A typical weighting for RFPs is 50/50. That is, the Cost is worth 50% of the points and non-cost is worth 50% of the points. If that was the breakdown in the Scenario 5 procurement, we would multiply each bidder’s points by the non-cost weighted value of 50%. However, Scenario 5 is different. In that procurement, Cost is weighted at 80% and non-cost is weighted at 20%.
So now we perform that calculation – multiplying each bidder’s unweighted non-cost points by .2 or 20% to arrive at a Total Weighted Non-Cost Score for each bidder. This score will later be added to the Weighted Cost Score to determine each bidder’s Preliminary Total Weighted Score. 
Again, before we move on, does this calculation make sense to everyone, or are there any questions?

Field all questions and then…

NEXT SLIDE 
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Why do you think we’re comparing all of the bids to the lowest cost?

The basis of the cost part of the evaluation is always lowest cost.
For those of you following along on Exercise 1, Page Ex1-3, Calc 4 is at the top of the page.
	
	Now that we’ve determined each eligible bidder’s Total Weighted Non-Cost Score, let’s move on and determine each bidder’s Total Weighted Cost Score. We’ll actually be taking costs and converting them into a representative Score. We’ll need to do 3 calculations to accomplish this so we’ll call these Calculations 4, 5 and 6.

In Calculation 4, we’ll compare the Validated Costs of each bidder to the bidder with the lowest validated cost. Note that the Validated Costs of each bidder will include the application of any TACPA, EZA, and/or LAMBRA preferences if it’s later determined that a small business is not in line for award. Their application is actually a little tricky in an RFP, so we’ll talk a little more about that later. 

So we’re going to divide the lowest Validated Cost by each bidder’s Validated Cost to arrive at the Ratio. The bidder with the lowest cost will always have a Ratio of 1.0000. Make sense?

(click)

Now we’re going to take this Ratio and use it in Calculation 5.

Before we move on though, does this calculation make sense, or are there any questions?

Field all questions and then…

NEXT SLIDE 
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	Now, let’s talk a little about spreadsheets and tables.

QUESTION: By a show of hands, how many are familiar with using spreadsheet programs like Microsoft EXCEL?

OK, then. For those of you that are not familiar with these types of programs, we’ve created a tool that we hope will be fairly easy to use even without spreadsheet experience. Most of the calculations are done automatically.

Together, we’re going to complete some Tables in EXCEL that can then be used to do a comparative analysis of the proposals. Because they are an especially effective method of displaying results in a visual manner, you can later copy-and-paste them into your Evaluation & Selection Report (E&S Report). 

NEXT SLIDE
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	So, what are these Tables all about?

They were created in EXCEL. 

Instructions for completion are included with each Table. 

The cells in each Table are color coded, as follows: 

· Aqua cells represent areas that you must complete.

· Yellow cells represent areas that will be automatically populated by formulas.

· Gray cells are row and column headers.

· White cells are “empty” cells, with nothing entered into them. 

The yellow cells have built-in formulas, so they are dependent on information entered either into the same table (in different columns), or in earlier tables. 

Because we have arranged the preferences used in these tables in the order in which they should be applied, it’s important to complete the Tables in sequential order, and not move them around. 

Don’t copy-and-paste the formulas, and also, don’t re-arrange the order of the proposals.

NEXT SLIDE
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	Regardless of whether you are familiar with spreadsheets or not, I thought you might enjoy a little Dilbert here....

QUESTION: Who wants to read the comic out loud to the class?

(Click for the next slide which is the actual comic. After that, then click again and Slide 17 will be the next slide.)

NEXT SLIDE
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	OK, then, here is a list of the Tables we’ll be using in the exercise, but don’t be daunted by this list. Actually most of the data is filled in automatically as we move from one table to the next.

As we walk through these I’ll explain what each table is for, and if you will need to enter data, or if the calculations will automatically be done for you.

During the exercise that will follow my walk-through, each of you will open up the document that contains the Tables, and fill the numbers in with numbers from Scenarios in the workbooks.

So let’s get started.

Go to the Exercise 1 Instructor Notes for the walk-through instructions (pages E1-11 through E1-19.
[INSTRUCTOR NOTE: So you walk them through an example using the tables. They have a hard copy template of the tables behind the Exercise 1 Tab that they can also look at as you fill in the tables.] 



	Module 5 – Selection and Award

1. Compare

...Comparative Analysis

Exercise 1 – Playing with the Tables



	Slide 25

	?
	Returning from Exercise 1 walk-through...

OK now, let’s open up the Tables so you can play with them. 

First I’ll release your computers to you. For those of you that haven’t already done so, please turn on your PCs. The password is “password”.

Once you’ve done that, fire up the Internet, open up the class website (the address is up here on the board), and click on “Evaluation Tables” to open up the Table document.

Have people count off 1-4. Whatever number they are is their Scenario assignment. 

QUESTION: Everyone looking at the Tables on your own computers now? Everyone got their assigned Scenario (you’ll find those in the Exercise 1 tab, pages Ex 1-20 through Ex1-29)? 

OK then, let’s take about 10 to 15 minutes while each of you enters the numbers from your Scenarios into the Tables. Then we’ll talk a little bit about the results. Ready, set, GO!

NEXT SLIDE
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	Returning from Exercise 1
QUESTION: We included Scenarios that used relatively low points and costs, along with ones that used relatively high points and costs? In comparing your work with your neighbor, did anyone notice a difference between the two?

Let the discussion ensue (if anyone noticed). Hopefully they will have noticed that the “added zeros” (the higher points and cost) made little difference in the outcome. The point to that is – maybe they should keep their evaluation model as simple as possible, and not overly complicate it with “added zeros”.

Now, to recap:

· The tables are designed as a tool to assist you in comparing proposals to each other and identifying the apparent winning proposal (bidder).

· Don’t re-arrange the tables, or the bidders (proposals) as they are listed on Table 2. 

· Don’t copy cell entries or formulas. Make all entries individually.

· The cells in the Tables are color-coded to indicate if there is data you need to enter or if a calculation will automatically be completed for you. 

· Make sure a bidder’s eligibility for a preference has been verified before it is applied.

· Finally, cut-and-paste the Tables into your E&S Report

NEXT SLIDE


	Module 5 – Selection and Award

1. Compare

Cost Envelope Openings



	Slide 27

	
	If you were in an actual evaluation process, you would temporarily suspend your evaluation after the completion of the Administrative and Technical Evaluation, post the results of the non-cost points evaluation, and proceed with the Cost Envelope Opening.

Following that, you would pick back up with Tables 5 through 9 and complete them. 

For this segment, we’re going to talk very briefly about the rules governing cost envelope openings, the publishing and/or posting requirements, and the process. 

Most of you are probably aware of the requirements in this area, but we have noticed that not all departments are consistent in the way they publish and post, and some are not meeting the statutory requirements. So, we’ll just spend a few minutes now to review.

NEXT SLIDE
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	So what are the rules that govern cost envelope openings? (click)
Public Contract Code § 12102(b) (in part):

“(2) Evaluation of all criteria, other than cost, shall be completed prior to the time designated for public opening of cost proposals, and the results of the completed evaluation shall be published immediately before the opening of cost proposals”. 

QUESTION: So who can define the word “publish”? 

Answer: The dictionary says it means to make a public announcement of something. 

Thinking back on the Tables, once Table 4 is completed, you may want to consider using it to publish the Total Non-Cost Points for each responsive and responsible bidder. Those proposals that have been rejected will also be included on the list, so you might want to call those bidders ahead of time and let them know their Cost Envelopes will not be opened. 

Once you have posted the Total Non-Cost Points for each responsive and responsible bidder, proceed with opening the Cost Envelopes. 

NEXT SLIDE
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	...and...

Anybody heard of the comedian Bill Maher, and his “new rules”?

(click)

Well, we don’t have “new” rules today, but we do have...

(click)

More Rules! 

NEXT SLIDE
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	Also from Public Contract Code § 12102(b) (in part):

“Solicitations for acquisitions based on evaluation

 criteria other than cost alone shall provide that sealed

 cost proposals shall be submitted and that they 

shall be opened at a time and place designated

 in the solicitation for bids and proposals.” 

SCM V3: 4.D6.1 states (in part):
The sealed cost proposals ... shall then be opened at the time and place designated in the solicitation and the remainder of the evaluation completed. 

NEXT SLIDE
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DGS found one department was posting on a bulletin board that was not accessible to the general public.
WTO/GPA is a treaty the US entered into, and California signed on to. The posting helps companies in member countries see what kind of goods, IT and services the State is buying.

	?

?
	But first, let’s talk a little bit about “posting”. 

From Public Contract Code § 12104.5(a), here’s another rule, specifically about posting:

“All rules and requirements governing an RFP ... shall be posted in a public location. Any changes ... shall be communicated in writing ... and shall be posted in a public location.”

QUESTION: Again, who wants to volunteer what you think the word “post” means? Answer: The dictionary says it means to publish, announce or advertise something. 

QUESTION: Where do your departments ordinarily post contracting and procurement notices?

As a minimum, Table 4 (or the information from that table) should be posted on the wall at the Cost Envelope Opening. 

The publishing and posting requirements for contracting documents can be quite confusing! So we created a Table depicting the requirements as they apply to different dollar levels and types of contracting transactions. Check out the “Advertising and Posting Requirements” handout behind Tab A​​​ in your workbook. 

Everybody familiar with the World Trade Organization/Government Procurement Agreement (WTO/GPA) requirement to post a notice of contract award within 72 days after award? This applies to contracts for goods, IT goods and goods and services, and even non-IT services contracts. The CSCR in eProcurement is the place to post these notices. 

NEXT SLIDE
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	At your Cost Envelope opening, be sure there are at least two representatives from your department (count yourself as 1). 

As attendees arrive at the Cost Envelope opening, ask them to sign in.

Then, after publishing and posting the “results of the completed evaluation”, the Cost Envelopes for each responsive/responsible bidder can be officially opened and read. So, what does this involve? Remember this topic from IACP Module 3 (Process Administration)?

First, sign the cost proposal certification called for in 

PCC § 12102(b)(2):  

“The State's contact person for administration of the solicitation ... shall execute a certificate under penalty of perjury... that all cost proposals received by the State have been maintained sealed and under lock and key until the time cost proposals are opened.”
A copy of suggested verbiage (from SCM V3 4.D6.3) is behind Tab B in your workbook.

Next, open the cost envelopes and announce the totals for each responsive and responsible bidder, recording each on a flip chart or white or black board for attendees to view.

Once you have finished the reading of the Cost Envelopes, close the proceeding.

NEXT SLIDE
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	OK, now we’ve opened the Cost Envelopes, we can return to and, beginning with Table 5, complete the remaining tables in sequential order. 

When the Tables are complete, we will determine the apparent winning bidder by ranking all of the proposals from the one with the highest weighted score down to one with the lowest weighted score.

We will confirm that the apparent winning bidder is a responsible bidder, and then proceed with a demonstration or benchmark, as noted in our RFP.

So, let’s quickly walk through these steps.

NEXT SLIDE
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	First, we focus on the #1 ranked bidder – the apparent winning bidder.

Before we announce our Intent to Award, let’s make sure this is the bidder that should be selected.

You should have already gone through these steps in your evaluation (remember IACP 4, Evaluation?), however, even if you did, let’s double-check ourselves now, and if you didn’t, now would be the time to do these checks.

· Does the bidder have adequate financial resources? How about the necessary organization, experience, operational controls and technically skilled personnel (or the ability to obtain them)?

· Does the bidder have a satisfactory record of performance in similar endeavors?

· Is the bidder able to deliver according to schedule?

· Does the bidder have an adequate quality assurance program; a satisfactory record of integrity (responsibility issues)?

· Did you verify (and document) with the Secretary of State that the bidder is legally qualified to do business in California?

· Any legal reason why you shouldn’t be contracting with the bidder?

· Can this contract be considered follow-on work?

· Has the bidder violated the Unfair Practices Act?

· Is the price competitive and reasonable? How did you make that determination? Did you do a Price Analysis? Also, does the price line up with Department of Finance and Technology Agency approved estimates (in your FSR or SPR)?

NEXT SLIDE
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	The following are also mentioned in IACP 4, Evaluation:

Has the bidder been suspended or barred from contracting with the State? What if your contract using federal funds – has the bidder been debarred from bidding by the federal government?

You can check the following online resources for help in answering this question (click on the bullets to open these pages up online):

· Federal “Excluded Parties List,” aka EPLS, this is the official federal government-wide database of records of debarments, suspensions and other exclusionary actions, and it is updated in real time.
· Air & Water Polluters (GC §§ 4475-4482) – State agencies can’t contract with anybody on the list (SWRCB in the EPA compiles the list).
· Nondiscrimination. Look for DFEH in the General Public Interest section of the California Regulatory Notice Register. This data is always listed in the first issue of each month.

NEXT SLIDE


	Module 5 – Selection and Award

1. Compare 

…Select the Contractor



	Slide 36

	
	And a few more:
(click on the bullets to open these pages up online.):

· Plastic Trash Bag content requirement violators (PRC § 42297). See DGS 11/1/11 broadcast on this topic.

· Iran Contracting Act of 2010 (PCC 2200-2208). DGS list of companies state agencies are prohibited from contracting with. Check DGS Broadcast Bulletins.

· PCC § 10295.4 list of companies state agencies are prohibited from doing business with pursuant to AB 1424 (Perea), effective 7/1/12. These are the Franchise Tax Board’s “Top 500” delinquent taxpayers, and the Board of Equalization’s “Largest Sales & Use Tax Delinquencies in California”
Both agencies list companies and individuals on their lists that owe over $100,000. FTB issues a new list every 6 months and the BOE updates their list quarterly. Just search for “Top 500” and you’ll find the lists (at the time this was written – 01/30/12 – both sites had only “Top 250” pursuant to the law in effect on that date).
OK, so that’s it (finally!)! Our potential awardee made it through the Once we’ve double-checked ourselves, then let’s take that big step and say that we have selected our contractor!!!

NEXT SLIDE
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	Generally, in Section X of the RFP, the State asks bidders to include in their proposal, a Plan that identifies how, when, and where they intend to facilitate a demonstration of the solution they offered in their proposal.

Benchmarks or Demonstrations are both conducted at the State’s option. Should your RFP include one or the other, then – having identified the potential winning bidder -- now is the time you would call for the Benchmark or Demonstration.

PD buyers often call for the demonstration or benchmark during the procurement process, and it is done with all participating bidders. Before holding demonstrations or benchmark tests with all participating bidders during procurement, consider the cost and time implications – for both the state as well as the participating bidders, only one of whom will win the contract.

Generally, the purpose of the benchmark or demonstration is to verify claims made by the bidder in its Final Proposal, validate the State’s evaluation, and confirm the proposed solution is actually in operation.

If the benchmark is held in California, it shall be held at no cost to the State (except for State per diem which the State pays), however if the benchmark is held outside California (and assuming you can get approval for out-of-state travel), the bidder must reimburse the State for travel and per diem expenses. 

For the purposes of this class, let’s assume the bidder has passed the Demonstration. (
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	We have now selected our contractor!!

(click)

Woohoo!!

Now what? 

(click)

Documentation!!
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	Moving on, the next topic will be the Evaluation and Selection Report (E&S Report). 

QUESTION: By a show of hands, how many of you have experience writing an E&S Report after the completion of an IT RFP or IFB?

Good! Now you can be our resident experts on the content of this important report, so please feel free to chime in at any time to share pointers or experiences with the rest of the class.
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	Many of you know this report as the “Recommendation Package”. Regardless of the name, you will need to document the entire solicitation process and report on the results.

We’re going to try to use the KIS technique, but in this segment of the class we need to discuss a few things, including:

· the rules, 

· the form and content of your report, 

· templates and tools you can use (such as the Tables), and

· reviews and approvals.

QUESTION: What do you think Churchill meant by his statement?

Answer: The message in Churchill’s quote is that the report he’s talking about is too darned long!! To bring it back to this class – use the KIS technique on your report and, without sacrificing clarity “keep it simple silly”.
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	Section 4.B5.9 of the SCM V3, in part, calls for

“An Evaluation and Selection Report for all IT RFPs, including telecommunication goods and services.”

It is always good public policy to document the entire procurement process. Not only for auditors, but also for historical purposes. The documentation should be written in such a way that future readers will understand the process and the reasons for selection of the winning bidder.

You can save yourself some time at the end of the process by beginning the preliminary work on the E&S Report during the actual procurement. For instance, a lot of the background information can be added as you move along in the process.

NEXT SLIDE


	Module 5 – Selection and Award

2. Report

…Evaluation and Selection Report

Format and Content



	Slide 42
	
	(click)

This slide depicts all of the parts of the E&S Report. 

Before we go any further, let me remind you first that, in the one of the earlier classes you were given some tools that can be very useful in writing your E&S Report.

As you may recall, the SCM V3 has an E&S Report Template that is a very useful tool in developing the E&S Report for your procurement. You’ll find a hard copy behind Tab C in your workbook. BUT, an important caveat here – the suggestion (on page 4 of this template) to include bidders’ DVBE “good faith efforts” (GFE) to subcontract with DVBEs is no longer appropriate since the passage of AB4X 21 (2009) that removed the GFE from California law.
In addition, we’ve created an E&S Report Checklist for you to use, to make sure you have covered all the pertinent topics in your Report. In your workbook, behind Tab D you’ll find a copy of that document, along with a chart comparing the items in the Checklist (Tab E) to the items in the E&S Report template from SCM V3 so you can see that all of the items in the E&S Report Template have been addressed in the E&S Report Checklist. Use these 2 tools along with the E&S Report template to develop your own report.
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	You might want to pull out the Evaluation and Selection Report Checklist behind Tab D in your workbooks and follow along with me. 

First, each and every individual on your Evaluation and Selection Team should sign the E&S Report.

We have included on the slide some suggested verbiage that indicates their concurrence with the material in the report, and the recommended course of action.

You can use our language, or similar language that conveys the same message.

Be sure to include the typed name and title of each individual signing the report, along with their office or branch. You might also want to consider including a space for the date they signed the report.
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	This section of the report should be considered the Executive Overview. It should include a brief summary of what the procurement is all about. Provide enough information for the reader to understand exactly what it is you are procuring. Not down to the 500 widgets, but at a high level. 

In the “recommendation” part of the report, you should briefly explain how your recommended selection was made, and specifically, which bidder you are recommending for contract award, the expected term of the contract, and the value of the contract award.

Since it is short and concise, you may also want to include the condensed Table 9a Final Overall Weighted Score in this part of the report. 
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	Use this section to summarize the steps you followed to determine which bidder you would recommend for contract award. 

· How did you go about evaluating the proposals?

· What was the sequence of events during the evaluation?

· How did you evaluate scorable and non-scorable requirements?

· What did your analysis of deviations reveal?

· How did you evaluate the costs and any claimed incentives and/or preferences?

· How did you determine the price was competitive and reasonable? Did you perform a Price or Cost Analysis? (Procurement Summary GSPD-300) 

· How did you identify the apparent winning bidder?

You may find the “Bidder Selection Chronology” class handout behind Tab G to be useful for this purpose. The GSPD-300 (Procurement Summary) is also behind this tab (identified as Tab G2). 
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	In addition to the topics listed on the previous slide, here are a few others you’ll want to discuss:

· Evaluation and Selection Team procedures

· Proposal screening process. Use the Qualification Checklist from IACP 4 Evaluation (This was Attachment 8A to the Evaluation and Selection Team Procedures Template. A copy is behind Tab Z in the workbooks)

· Evaluation of non-scorable requirements such as DVBE Participation requirements and “commercially useful function”

· Evaluation of scorable requirements

· Cost evaluation and scoring

· Application of preferences and DVBE Incentive

· Identifying the apparent winning bidder

The Material Deviation Worksheets you will use to evaluate defects in individual proposals will hold key information, but they will likely be far too voluminous to stick in the middle of a report. Remember the KIS principle? Instead, put all of them (material and immaterial) in the back of the report as Attachments. That way, the detail won’t get in the way of what the reader wants to read.
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	Let’s spend a few minutes reviewing material deviations. Recall your discussions on this topic in the last Module?

The very first paragraph in RFP Section II, Rules Governing Competition addresses deviations:

· “Shall, must or will” requirements are mandatory, and any deviation from these (with very rare exception) would be considered material in nature.

· “Should or may” requirements are considered desirable; therefore any deviation from these requirements cannot be considered material. Because they are not mandatory. 

Kind of an oxymoron, huh? ...... “requirements” and “not mandatory (not required)”.......

In any case, when reviewing proposals and analyzing the bidder’s response to the State’s requirements, for the purposes of determining whether or not there are material deviations, focus on the mandatory requirements.

Material deviations are those that:

· Are not in substantial accord with the RFP requirements;

· Provide one bidder an advantage over other bidders; or

· Have a potentially significant effect on the delivery, quantity, or quality of items bid, amount paid to the supplier, or on the cost to the State.”
These are 7 tests you must go through as you analyze deviations. Use the Deviation Worksheets behind Tab F in your workbooks to help you with this analysis. 
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	Aside from identifying and analyzing the deviations in your Deviation Worksheets, how do we deal with them in the E&S Report?

One of the ways used most often is to discuss each bidder’s proposal individually, beginning with the highest scored proposal and working down to the lowest scored proposal.

That way, you are addressing the bid that received the highest score first in the report. If there are any material deviations, your discussion of those will provide an explanation the reader will be expecting to see regarding why you bypassed that bidder in favor of another with a lower score. As you discuss the material deviations you detected, you should: 

· Copy the actual requirement from the RFP, word-for-word (if the requirement is really long, OK to summarize). That way, the reader won’t have to refer to the RFP or the Proposal to determine the context.

· Include the bidder’s response, again word-for-word

· Add the Evaluation Team’s consensus analysis 

· Conclude with a materiality assessment 

Immaterial deviation worksheets should not be discussed in the actual E&S Report. They should, however, be included as Attachments. (click)
This may well be the most important part of your report, so take special care to “get it right”.
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	This next section of your report is where you will “tell the story” about your solicitation process. 

This is the “What and Why and When and How and Where and Who” Rudyard Kipling is talking about.
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	· Did you do an RFI (request for interest or information)?
· When did you advertise in the CSCR (eProcurement)?
· When did you release the RFP?
· When did you hold the Bidder’s Conference?
· Which suppliers wrote letters of intent to bid?
· Did any potential bidder protest the requirements of the RFP?
· What about Confidential Discussions?

· Did you conduct any (Pubic Contract Code) “6611” competitive negotiations during your evaluation and selection process? That discussion could appear in the either the Background section or the Evaluation section of your report, as appropriate.
· And so on...

QUESTION: Did we leave anything out?

In the Evaluation and Selection Report Checklist (class handout), in this section we’ve identified a whole slew of topics that you might want to consider including in the Background of your report.

You may have a tendency to get a little wordy in this section, so here is an opportunity for you to mix in some visuals to break up the text. Create and use tables to break up all the text or you will surely lose the reader. Remember ...

(click)

... Keep it simple!
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	Now we’re ready to finish the E&S Report.

Let’s begin by finalizing the verbiage throughout the report. This is the normal cut-and-paste and editing that would be done with any official document.

Double-check the accuracy of all of the numbers you entered into the tables.

Add your Attachments, such as the Deviation Worksheets for every scored requirement, for every single bidder that was evaluated. Another document that comes to mind is the Cost Proposal Certification. Keep this part of the report as pertinent and brief as possible, moving as much as you can to the Attachments section.

Although we didn’t discuss them in the context of this class, if you undertook any (Public Contract Code) “6611” negotiations, be sure to discuss that in your report, and include the documentation in the Attachments section.

QUESTION:  OK, that’s your report. Did we leave anything out that needs to be included?

Answer: Yes we did!! Kudos to those that remembered the Reviews and Approvals.
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	Seriously, these are a very important part of the whole package, and without them, DGS will not permit the contract to be awarded.

You will need your Department Director’s signature for an expenditure of this size. You may also need the Technology Agency or the Department of Finance’s approval, before you can transmit to DGS (check your FSR approval memo).

So, once you’ve obtained all required signatures (except DGS), it is time to transmit your E&S Report (or “Recommendation Package” if that’s what your department calls it) to DGS, along with the following:

· RFP, with all Addenda incorporated

· Question and answer sets

· All Final Proposals

· Notice of Intent to Award

· Contract

· Anything else DGS designated in its delegation memo to your department

Once DGS concurs with your recommendation, release your Notice of Intent to award the contract.
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	Just to review......

In your Workbooks, we have provided the following templates and tools that you can use. You can find links to all of these on the class website. As a reminder, here is the class URL:

http://www.dgs.ca.gov/pd/Programs/CalPCA/Info/IACP5.aspx 

NEXT SLIDE


	Module 5 – Selection and Award

Moving Along…



	Slide 54
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	QUESTION: First, any lingering questions about the Evaluation and Selection Report before we move on?

Field any questions. If you can’t answer any of them, add those questions to the parking board to be answered later. 

OK, next we’re going to briefly discuss the Notice of Intent to Award
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	In this segment, we’ll be talking about the rules, and then what to do if you receive a protest of your intended award.
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	From Public Contract Code § 12102(h) (in part):

“The procedures shall provide that protests must be filed no later than five working days after the issuance of intent to award.” 

From SCM V3 4.D5.3 (in part):

“For IT goods or goods and services solicitations exceeding $100,000, all bidders must be notified of an intent to award a contract at least 5 working days prior to award.”

So, no question, we need to post a Notice of Intent to Award. As a best practice, ensure that each bidder receives a copy of the posted notice at the same time it is made public.

Start the clock – for the 5-day period – the next working day so that bidders will have 5 full working days to review the files before award is made.
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	OK, moving on..... You’ve posted your Notice of Intent to Award; now what happens?

While your entire file became public once the Cost Envelopes were opened, it is the State’s practice to keep that material confidential until a Notice of Intent to Award has been issued. As noted in the Model IFB/RFP Section II. C. 4. “...THE CONTENTS OF (basically any document – hard copy or electronic – dealing with any aspect of a bidder’s proposal, including correspondence) SHALL BE HELD IN THE STRICTEST CONFIDENCE UNTIL NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD.” 

Once the notice is posted however, interested parties are permitted to view the public record of your procurement. Bidders in particular will want to look at the other bidder’s proposals, especially the intended awardee, and they will pick through them with a fine tooth comb looking for any flaws or material deviations the State missed. As they are doing their review, it is best that a state employee be present.
The bidder may also request copies of portions of the proposals, or entire proposals. You may be able to collect a fee to recover the cost of making copies. Remember, time is of the essence with any photocopy requests, as bidders must file any objection (protest) to the award within 5 working days after the Notice of Intent to Award was issued. So be sure to produce the copies as quickly as possible.
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	870.3(a)(9) of the protest regulations defines it as follows: 

"Protest" shall mean a written objection by a bidder to an intended contract award proposed by Procurement that is submitted to Procurement under section 872.1 after the posting of an intent to award.
“Procurement” is defined in 870.3(a)(7) as either DGS/PD or 

“another State agency that has been delegated purchasing authority by the Department of General Services”.

Section 872.1(b) provides that: 

 A protestant shall file a notice of protest...

“(1) no earlier than the issuance of an intent to award a contract; and

(2) no later than five working days after the issuance of an intent to award a contract.”

Be sure to instruct protesting callers to submit their timely protest in writing according to the regulations.
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	So, what if a protest is received? 

(click)

SCM V3, 7.3.3 provides the answer: 

“The buyer stops any further action of the proposed contract award until resolution of the protest of proposed award has occurred.” SCM is very clear on this issue -- if you receive a protest, STOP everything, and (click) transmit the protest to DGS immediately – preferably within 30 minutes after receipt.
Award of the contract cannot occur until the protest has either been withdrawn or resolved by the Victims Compensation and Government Claims Board (VCGCB).

More on this in the next segment.

QUESTION: First, any questions about the Notice of Intent to Award before we move on?

Field any questions. If you can’t answer any of them, add those questions to the parking board to be answered later. 
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	OK, here we are in the next segment already, so now its time to talk a little bit more about the different protest processes.
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	In this segment, we’re going to discuss:

· The different types of protests 

· The rules pertaining to the different types of protests

· The grounds (or reasons) for protest

· The roles and responsibilities of your department and DGS in the protest process

· The timelines for processing a protest

· Finally, we’ll close with a fun Exercise ( 
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	The rules are very straightforward, and reside in the following locations:

· PCC § 12102(h)

· Regulations at 2 CCR § 870.1-874.1 (copy behind   Tab L in your workbooks)

Boiled down, those rules provide for the following:

· DGS decides on initial protests, and that is the final remedy.

· Award protests must be filed NLT 5 working days after issuance of Intent to Award.

· Only bidders may protest award [CCR § 870.3. (a)(2)] “Bidder" shall mean an individual or entity that submitted a final bid in response to a solicitation that is subject to a protest.”

· If a protest has been filed, the contract cannot be awarded until the protest is withdrawn or resolved in the State’s favor by the Victims Compensation and Government Claims Board (VCGCB or “the Board”) 

There are other types of protests – such as the Alternative Protest Process – with their own set of rules and regulations, and Administrative Law Judges at Office of Administrative Hearings hear these protests – however, for the purposes of this class we’re only going to discuss the types of protests you may expect to see during a “traditional” RFP process.
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	The types of protests we are discussing include:

“Initial” protests. We use the nomenclature “initial” because that is the verbiage used in the Public Contract Code.

An Initial protest is a challenge by a supplier against the technical, administrative, or cost requirements described in a formal competitive solicitation. Sometimes we call these “requirements” protests.

These are resolved in a relatively informal process, by the DGS Director who has delegated that authority to the Deputy Director, Procurement Division.

Proposed Contract Award Protests (“Award Protests”). 

An Award protest is a challenge by a participating bidder against the proposed contract award.

The Board is the deciding body for these protests. The rules they follow are quite rigid, many set forth in Statute or Regulation. 
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	The grounds or reasons for filing a protest differ depending on the type of protest filed.

With an “initial” protest, the grounds must be that the requirements of the RFP unnecessarily restrict the supplier’s ability to bid.

Recall from IACP 2 (RFP Development), the Key Action Dates list a “last day to protest the RFP”, however, suppliers may also protest within 5 working days after the issuance of any Addendum to the RFP.

For “award” protests, PCC § 12102(h) states that bidders can protest on the “ground that his or her bid or proposal should have been selected in accordance with the selection criteria in the solicitation document”.

With “award” protests, the burden of proof is on the protestant. By a “preponderance of evidence”, they must prove:
1) that their proposal was responsive in every way to the RFP; and
2) that “but for” errors made by the State during its evaluation, they should have been selected in accordance with the selection criteria in the solicitation document.
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	The roles and responsibilities of State agencies, DGS, and protestants differ, depending on the type of protest.

With respect to “initial” protests, there is no looming deadline by which they must be resolved, except the proposal opening date. 

The process is relatively straightforward – 

Once the protest is filed, together, your department and DGS/PD/Technology Acquisitions Branch (TAB) will determine if it has merit or not. If it does (have merit), an Addendum is created that incorporates the changes into the RFP, and may also extend the proposal due date. If it has no merit, the protest will be denied. 

As with your RFP, any Addendums must be approved by DGS Legal.
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	?
	For this segment, we’ve included a number of handouts that will help you. They are all behind Tabs H, I, J, and K in your workbooks. Here are the documents you should have:

· Initial Protests – Roles and Responsibilities (Tab H)

· Contract Award Protests – Roles and Responsibilities (Tab I)

· Traditional Protest – 72 hour Information/Solicitation Checklist (Tab J)

· Important Protest Deadlines (Tab K)

Let’s take a closer look at the first document. 

QUESTION: Who is familiar with RACI matrices? Can you describe them for the class? 
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	At its most basic the RACI process is a way to examine

a process step, task, activity, effort, event, or decision

to determine who is: 

Responsible: those who do the work to achieve the task.

Accountable: those who are ultimately accountable for the correct and thorough completion of the deliverable or task, and the one to whom R is accountable. An A must Approve work that R performs. There is only one A specified for each task or deliverable. 

Consulted: those whose opinions are sought. Two-way communication. 

Informed: those kept up-to-date on progress. One-way communication.

Although we’ve used this RACI matrix to depict the various roles and responsibilities in a specific protest process, this type of matrix or chart can also be used for many other types of tasks. It is especially useful where there is a team of people working toward a particular end. Take the concept home with you and explore the possibilities. You might even find it fun to play with!

NEXT SLIDE


	Module 5 – Selection and Award

4. Protests

Roles and Responsibilities

...Initial Protests



	Slide 68
	?
	So now let’s go to the RACI matrix for the Initial Protest Process behind Tab H. See how the information is displayed in an easy-to-read and understand table format? The tasks or events are listed down the left side of the table, with the pertinent individuals listed across the top. 

From the looks of it, both the PCO and TAB have the bulk of the responsibility during this process. But notice the Deputy Director of Procurement Division. Only one task in the entire process, and yet it is critical.

Unless you run up against critical Key Action Dates, your RFP may not even be delayed by the handling of the protest.

QUESTION: Any questions before we move on?

Field any questions. If you can’t answer any of them, add those questions to the parking board to be answered later. 
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	New subject. Completely different process from initial protests. So let’s take a look now at the RACI Matrix for Contract Award Protests from Tab I. 

Notice there is a column with deadlines. With award protests, there are many statutory or regulatory deadlines (a copy of the protest regulations is behind Tab L in your workbooks) that you must be aware of, and prepared to meet. Otherwise you risk losing the protest on a formality. 

So you receive a letter of intent to protest (protest letter) your intended contract award. What do you do?

First, IMMEDIATELY STOP the award process (do not sign that contract!) and TRANSMIT the protest letter to the DGS/PD Dispute Resolution Unit (DRU). You’ll notice the contact information for DRU is below the RACI Matrix. 

DRU will send you a document entitled “Traditional Protest – 72 hour Information/Solicitation Checklist” with very specific instructions about which documents you must deliver to them, and when. Be prepared to deliver these critical documents to DRU as quickly as you logistically can, because....... 

DRU must transmit the protest letter and required documents to the Board within 72 hours of receipt of the protest letter.  
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	Now let’s use the RACI matrix to review the remaining deadlines.

The next deadline is one the protestant must meet – they must deliver their Detailed Statement of Protest (DSP) to the Board within ten (10) calendar days after they submitted their letter of intent to protest. If a protestant fails to meet that deadline, their protest will be deemed by the Board to be withdrawn. 
Assuming the protestant submits a timely detailed statement, DGS and the PCO (or designee) must work collaboratively to prepare the State’s response. While the Executive Officer of the Board sets this date, it is generally 10 working days after receipt of the detailed statement by the Board. Notice the change from calendar days to working days? 

The Executive Officer of the Board will set all remaining dates in the process, including the Hearing date.

Check out “after Working Day 20”. You may even be called as a witness at a protest – yikes!
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	· What if the Board advises it has no legal authorization to hear the protest or dismisses the protest?

· Unless the protestant wants to litigate, proceed with award of the contract after notification from the Board

· What if the Board denies the protest?

· Sign the contract

· What if the Board upholds the protest?

· Send letters to interested parties withdrawing the Notice of Intent to Award

· Re-evaluate the remaining proposals

· Identify the new apparent winning bidder, then:  (1) Double-check all responsibility issues for the selected bidder, (2) hold demonstration if necessary, (3) re-do the Evaluation and Selection Report to include details regarding the protest and re-evaluation, (4) Obtain necessary approvals to award to a new bidder, and (5) Issue new Notice of Intent to Award to the bidder

OR

· Cancel the RFP and rebid it with revised requirements;  

OR

· Cancel the RFP in its entirety (forever!)

Always Consult with DGS and Legal Counsel before taking any action.

QUESTION: If I’m the protestant, I’m thinking “shouldn’t the Board force the State to award to me?” What do you think?
Answer: The Board has no authority to force the State to award a contract to anyone. It’s authority in award protests is limited to upholding or denying the protest. 
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	OK, know everything there is to know about protests? No? Well, you’ll need to consider signing up for the Protest Workshop, as soon as it is developed and deployed.

Alright then, we’re ready to move on to the next subject – Contract Award and Administration. But before we move on, how about some fun?

Pull out the Exercise 2 Instructions and work from them.

When the Exercise is completed go over the answers with the class.
Whew! Finally, all done!! Was that fun or what?
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	QUESTION: Any questions about Protests before we move on?

Field any questions. If you can’t answer any of them, add those questions to the parking board to be answered later. 
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	In this segment, we’re going to talk a little about closing out the RFP, issuing the signed, sealed contract, and lots of other types of activities like notices and reports, bonds, debriefings, and most importantly, identifying and communicating to the pertinent parties the contract administration requirements.
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	OK now, we’ve finished the evaluation and selection process of our procurement. 

We’ve selected a winning bidder; announced our intent to award, AND we got no protest – woohoo!! Right, wishful thinking.....

OR, alternatively, we got a protest, but the Board ruled against the protestant – again, woohoo! 

So let’s organize the file. 

Let’s take a quick look at the File Documentation Checklist/Index behind Tab M in your workbooks. This is the same form that is used by DGS/PD/TAB analysts. You should see all the pertinent documents arranged in chronological order, beginning with the most recent (contract amendments, if any), and ending with the oldest documents – your earliest market research documentation. And yes, I recognize some of the terminology in the form is a bit out-of-date. But I am told this is the most current version that TAB uses.

Once you’ve arranged your file, add amendments to the front of the file, and any other documentation should be added in the same order as this checklist.

QUESTION:  Are we missing anything?

NEXT SLIDE
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	So now its time to sign the contract and get going. Start with the Std 213 for IT Goods/Services Only which is available at the URL you see on the slide.

It is a PDF form, fill-in-and-print, and it cannot be saved. So once you’ve got the language the way you want it to read, be sure to print multiple copies. There is also a “www” version of this form that is used if you intend to point to the General Provisions (as opposed to including them as an attachment to the contract).

Go to Tab N now and pull out the Std 213 you find there. It is all filled out with the verbiage we suggest you consider inserting into Section 4. You’ll need to fill in the number of pages where the blank spaces are next to Exhibits A, B, and C. Be sure to use only those Special Provisions that apply to your contract. 

The boilerplate language (with asterisks*) (Exhibits D through H) is incorporated by reference, and the URL where those documents are located is included as well.  

DGS Legal advises that all documents referred to be physically attached to every copy of the Std 213 so that everything is within the “four corners of the contract”. However, they have agreed that, so long as the documents are available online for at least seven (7) years from either the closeout date, or the payment date of the last invoice, whichever is earlier; they may be incorporated into the contract by reference. This is pursuant to instructions from the Department of Justice, Attorney General’s office (Tab O). 

It may be easier to attach them to the contract....

NEXT SLIDE
[INSTRUCTOR NOTE: Remind students to always check 

on-line for the latest version of any form or template]
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	Once your contract is signed, you’ve still got a few more notifications to complete and reports to file. Here is a partial listing of these. We’ve also included a document that lists the various reporting requirements behind Tab P in the workbooks. This “Calendar of Reports” is also available on PD’s website at the address noted on the slide. It has electronic links to all of the report forms and instructions.

And you’re probably familiar with the all of the 810 reports – just a few of them are listed on this slide.

Notice the Consulting Services Report – be sure to include IT consulting services contracts in this report. 

NEXT SLIDE
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	Everyone familiar with the ERG (Ethnicity, Race and Gender) report – the Std 810E? State agencies are required to annually report the participation levels in contracts by Ethnicity, Race and Gender of the business owner, as reported voluntarily by business owners. That information is captured on the Voluntary Statistical Data Sheet (VSDS).
And the Std 204 Payee Data Record. Not an annual report, but still an important piece of paperwork each contractor you do business with must sign. Keep the original signed copy in your Accounting Office, and a photocopy in your contract file. The original may be retained for three (3) years before you need to obtain a newly-signed copy. 

Late Payment Penalties paid. How many are familiar with this annual reporting requirement? a report that must be filed annually with DGS, who then must make its “master” report public information.

How about the DE 542? This form needs to be filed with EDD within 20 days of either making payment of $600 or more or entering into a contract for $600 or more with an independent contractor in any calendar year, whichever is earlier. This is a report that allows EDD to increase child support collection by assisting in locating parents who are delinquent in child support obligations. 

And of course, the new Loss Leader report. Everybody familiar with those reporting requirements (both within 30 days of discovery of omission of loss leader language in a solicitation, as well as annually)?

NEXT SLIDE
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	Once you’ve got the file arranged in labeled storage boxes (yes, it will be boxes), it’s time to hold any debriefings requested by bidders that did not win. These debriefings are done pursuant to the rules in Section II of the RFP that provides: 

“A debriefing may be held after contract award at the request of any bidder for the purpose of receiving specific information concerning the evaluation.  The discussion will be based primarily on the technical and cost evaluations of the bidder's Final Bid.”
Debriefings should not be adversarial in any way. They should be meetings where you discuss candidly with a losing bidder, the flaws in their proposal. This will help them improve their proposals the next time they participate in a solicitation process.

Your entire file, including everything noted in the Contract File Documentation Checklist, is public record, and you must maintain it in such a way that you can produce it upon request.

And remember, you need to maintain this file and keep it accessible for a period of seven (7) years from either the closeout date, or the payment date of the last invoice, whichever is earlier. 

NEXT SLIDE
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	This discussion is a bit out of sequence with respect to the procurement process – decisions about these aspects of the contract should have been made much earlier on in the process so they could be included in the RFP. These are critical – and costly – issues that each bidder must be aware of before submitting their proposal to the State. 

Following the adoption of AB 617 (Torrico, 2007) into law, the PD/TAB began working on developing risk mitigation mechanisms for IT contracts. While interim guidelines were published (see DGS Mar 19, 2008 Blast], Interim Risk Evaluation Guidelines for IT Goods and Services Contracts, copy behind Tab Z in the Workbooks), TAB staff continued working on developing more comprehensive and robust risk mitigation mechanisms for permanent adoption that address independent deliverables, liquidated damages, limitation of liability, withholds, and bonds and other security instruments.

Because this topic and these issues are so important, we’ve chosen to address them in a separate workshop, so be sure to watch for that, and just know there are a number of risk mitigation mechanisms that can be built into your contract.

Having said that, we are going to spend just a few minutes talking about bonds, because they do provide the State a measure of protection from financial harm. And, because this is a protection that the State can exercise at the time of contract signing, even if not called for earlier in the RFP process.

NEXT SLIDE
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	Surety bonds have been a valuable tool for centuries. Here’s some trivia for you:

· The first known record of contract suretyship was an etched clay tablet from the Mesopotamian region around 2750 BC 

· Suretyship was first legally addressed in the (Babylonian) Code of Hammurabi ~ 1792 BC

· A Babylonian contract of financial guarantee from 670 BC is the oldest surviving written surety contract

· The Roman Empire developed laws of surety around 150 AD that exist in the principles of suretyship today

As in ancient Mesopotamia, Babylonia, and Rome, surety bonding today is a 3-party relationship among the owner (the State), the contractor and the surety.

(click) 

The State is guaranteed by the Surety that the contractor will perform the work, and if the contractor fails the surety company will complete the contract or compensate it for monetary losses (up to the amount of the bond). 

NEXT SLIDE
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	The contractor trusts the State will pay for the work performed, and trusts the Surety will assist the contractor to head off default should the contractor run into financial or performance problems. 

NEXT SLIDE
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	And finally, the Surety guarantees the contract will be performed, and protects the State from financial loss should the contractor default (up to the amount of the bond).

NEXT SLIDE
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	From RFP Section II: “The State reserves the right to require a faithful performance bond or other security document as specified in the IFB/RFP from the supplier in an amount not to exceed the amount of the contract.” 

You may have an award where you feel there is significant risk to do business with the selected bidder. One of the ways to minimize risk is to call for the bidder to supply a Bond. If the bond you are asking for was not specifically called for in the RFP, you will have to reimburse the bidder for the cost of it.

QUESTION: What if the bidder indicates they simply cannot produce the bond? 
RFP Section V provides that “Failure to submit the required document within 21 (calendar) days (after notification of contract award) may be cause for termination of the contract.” (emphasis added)

So if you have called for a bond (or other security instrument) to be supplied by the bidder, and they cannot do so within 21 days after notification of award, immediately discuss the situation with Legal Counsel. Such an omission could be cause for the State to cancel the award and re-evaluate the remaining proposals, or for contract termination if the contract has already been signed.

NEXT SLIDE
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	OK, what do you do if you get a bond?

I thought you might find it interesting to note that some State departments even require that the bonds be issued by a Surety that meets or exceeds certain ratings. Most such companies that rate sureties (and banks, insurance companies, etc.) use an alphabetic rating system (such as AAA, AA, A, BBB, BB, B or A++, A+, A, A-, B++, B- and so on). For instance, they might require that the bond be issued by a company with a rating of A or above.

· Call the Surety to verify the bond is real

· Read the bond form carefully and understand its provisions. The Bond form should contain:

· Signature or Corporate Seal

· Parties to the bond

· Maximum financial obligations of the surety 

· Other obligations of the surety (e.g. fulfill the contract)

· Contract reference (or RFP reference if contract number is not yet available)

· Verify the surety company is licensed to do business in California. Dept of Insurance website inquiry:

http://www.insurance.ca.gov/license-status/

· Make sure the bond verbiage does not change the contract terms and conditions in any way

· Be sure to keep the bond in a locked, secure location

· Annotate your file as to where the bond is located, so you can find it if necessary

· Return the bond to the contractor when no longer needed. Consider using Registered Mail, return receipt requested. 

NEXT SLIDE
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	Find the “Checklist for Contract Turnover” behind Tab Q. This can be a useful tool as you prepare to meet with the Project Manager (PM) to go over roles and responsibilities during the contract period.

Please pull out the RACI matrix entitled “Roles and Responsibilities during the Contract Period” located behind Tab R. This table identifies tasks at a very high level, and categorizes them, depending on when they occur during the contract period.  This is sort of a first cut at identifying roles and responsibilities, and they may be different in your department. These are suggestions – if you use this tool, you need to review it carefully to make sure all tasks are identified and the responsibilities appropriately assigned. Let’s go through a few of them quickly.
Monitoring expenditures – the PM is responsible for this task, but the PCO is accountable. In the matrix, the buck stops with the PCO, who must track expenditures and determine when funds need to be encumbered or disencumbered. It may be different in your department.

How about monitoring Contractor compliance with the Statement of Work? Here the PM is the one accountable. 

But when we look at “monitor(ing) Contractor compliance with SB/DVBE “commercially useful function”, you’ll see the accountability goes back to the PCO, who must consult with the PM in order to complete that task. 

Now, let’s look down at “process contract amendments”. There is something in each and every column for this item. But where does the ultimate accountability lie? DGS/PD. They must approve the contract amendment.
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	OK, then having had a look at this RACI Matrix, are you ready for the BIG KAHUNA? 

QUESTION: Let me ask you first -- If there was a tool that would help you to better understand the terms and conditions of your contract, as well as the individual roles and responsibilities, would that be useful to you?

The Big Kahuna is the RACI Matrix that we made up for the terms and conditions of the contract, except for the Statement of Work. But prepare yourself – this is a huge document!!

Please go to Tab S take out this document. We’re going to use it, but please don’t be over-whelmed! Along with the RACI matrix, you’ll also find copies of the General and Special Provisions to the contract behind Tabs T, U, V, W, and X.

We went through every paragraph in these Exhibits to the Contract and identified the various responsibilities. But consider this a “first cut” also (like the last matrix). Before using this document, please review thoroughly with your PD analyst and legal staff in order to determine the appropriate roles and responsibilities in your contract.

You can use this tool if you want to. Or not. It’s up to you. If you can and do invest some time researching those areas where your department has responsibilities, and take ownership of them, this tool may help to make the contract “boilerplate” language a little more understandable. You might also want to consider using it to analyze the SOW for roles and responsibilities.     

NEXT SLIDE
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	· Divide into teams

· Use the exercise materials behind Tab 4 in your workbooks

· Team 1 – Para. 16, General Provisions (Tab T)

· Team 2 – Para. 39, General Provisions (Tab T)
· Team 3 – Para. 4, IT Personal Services Special Provisions (Tab X) 
· Team 4 – Para. 5, IT Software Special Provisions (Tab W)
· Analyze contract language

· Identify activities

· Determine individual roles

· Record the results in the matrix pages

· Review the results in class

( Go to Instructions for Exercise 3
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	QUESTION:  By a raise of hands, anybody think a RACI Matrix can be a useful tool in determining the individual roles and responsibilities set forth in your Statement of Work?

For those of you who are hesitant, try using the RACI format for an easy project or task (like a birthday party). You may just find it is a lot more useful than you think!

Now, time for a REALITY CHECK.

Do we expect you to leave here today, go back to your jobs and the next time you write an IT contract, use a RACI Matrix to manage all the boilerplate? No! Seriously. We don’t expect that at all.

Do we hope you will find that using a RACI Matrix or similar format can be beneficial in managing your contracts? Yes, absolutely!

(click)

If you go through your Statement of Work with a similar “fine tooth comb”, ferreting out all the individual roles and responsibilities, we can virtually guarantee, you will do a much more effective job of managing your contract to budget and schedule. 

But, to help you with that, be sure to sign up for IACP 6 (Contract Administration), where we’ll continue to explore the use of RACI Matrices, and tackle other topics like contract disputes.
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	In this Module, we had hoped to provide you with the “tools” to successfully award a contract from an RFP.

As a reminder, our Objectives were – 

· Perform a comparative analysis of the proposals and select the winning bidder

· Document the evaluation and selection process

· Issue Notice of Intent to Award

· Process any Protest

· Award the contract and prepare for contract administration activities

(click)

QUESTION: Did we clear all the questions on the Parking Board?

(click)

QUESTION: More importantly, did we accomplish our objectives?

A great big THANK YOU to all of you for sticking with us for the entire, long day. Please be sure to fill out the evaluation form before you leave, and watch for the announcements for IACP Module 6, Contract Administration. Have a safe trip home!
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